How to Get Rich in Greater Cincinnati Real Estate

What You Need to Know, Get, and Do to Build a Wildly Successful Real Estate Investing Business In Southwestern Ohio, Northern Kentucky, and Southeast Indiana

By Vena Jones-Cox www.YouBuyHouses.com

Table of Contents

| My Life in Real Estate | 4 |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|
| Introduction: Why Greater Cincinnati Real Estate Rocks | 7 |
| Why People Get Rich in Greater Cincinnati Real Estate | 12 |
| Lesson 1: There's More than One Way to Get Rich in Cincinnati Area Real Estate Category 1: Quick Turn | 15 16 |
| Category 2: Buy, Fix, Sell Category 3: Buy to Hold | 19 |
| Category 4: Provide Financing for Buyers The Most Important Thing: How to Choose the Right Exit Strategy for YOU | 22 |
| Lesson 2: Never Pay Retail. Not Ever | |
| Why You Should Never Pay Full Price for Properties. Who Sells Properties at Pennies on the Dollar | |
| Lesson 3: There's No Such Thing as a "Self Made" Millionaire | |
| Two Kinds of Activities in Your Real Estate Business. Your Team Members. How to Make Your Team Relationships Work. | 40 |
| Lesson 4: Understanding Creative Finance Gets More Properties | |
| What "Creative Finance" Really Means Who's Going to Do These Deals with Me? | 46 |
| Lesson 5: Pay Attention or Pay Big: Asset Protection for Beginners | 59 |
| Lesson 6: There's No Such Thing as a 'Bad' Real Estate Market | 65 |
| Lesson 7: How to Get Educated Without Going Broke | |
| Cost Does Not Measure Quality. The Most Proven, Time-Tested Way to Get the Education You Need. | 71 |
| FREE Meeting Pass to Cincinnati REIA73 | |
| FREE Passive Investment Education! | 74 |

My Life in Real Estate

My name is Vena, and I'm a real estate addict.

After a short-lived and miserable¹ career in corporate America, I discovered that, at the age of 23, with a nearly-useless but very-expensive degree in sociology, I was apparently unemployable.

I disliked everything about having a "job", from the dress code to the commute to those silly policies about showing up on time. And my bosses disliked everything about me, from my smart mouth to my red/violet hair to my unwillingness to show up early and stay late.

So, with \$70,000 in credit card and student loan debt and nothing better to do, I joined my family's real estate business in 1989.

My father was a dyed-in-the-wool "Mom and Pop" landlord, by which I mean that he could—and would—fix a leaky boiler pipe with rubber bands, flattened aluminum cans, and Bond-O. When the phone rang at 11:29 p.m., he'd answer it in case it was a tenant reporting a roof leak. And if it was, he'd jump in his car and be out until 2 a.m. tarping the roof in the dark and the rain. He was worth millions on paper, but our family "vacations" consisted largely of going to places where we had family we could stay with, because, and I quote, "Money is for investing, not spending".

This was not a philosophy (or lifestyle) that tends to inspire a 23 year old.

In fact, I considered this new job—which had the advantage of allowing me to dress as I pleased and backtalk the boss, but the disadvantage of paying just \$18,000 a year²—something to do to pay the bills until I figured out what I wanted to do with my life.

¹ For both myself and my employer

² And, according to my father "Inheriting all this money you're making me"

So for two years, I treaded water, building my father's estate, learning the ropes of the rental business, dreaming of the day that I'd find a job or business that would make me anxious to jump out of bed in the morning and get to work.

Then, something happened that changed my view of real estate—and my life—forever. In 90 minutes, I was transformed from real estate agnostic (Yeah, they say it's a great way to have a great lifestyle, but I'll believe it when I see it) to real estate addict.

That thing was simple: I attended a meeting of my local real estate investor's association. And it was there that I discovered that there were about 1 zillion things that could be done with a property OTHER than rent it out. Many of the members were doing exactly that, but others were doing things called "retailing", "wholesaling", "lease/options", and a bunch of other stuff that seemed to mean something other than what my family had been doing with deals since before I was born.

I was stunned.

How could these things exist, and I, who grew up in real estate, know nothing about them? Were there really ways to buy properties without going to the bank on bended knee and begging for a loan? Were there really strategies that could put 4- or 5- figure profits in my pocket in 30, or 60, or 90 days? Now THAT was something I could get excited about.

So, the next day at work, I called a meeting with my father to enlighten him about all these great ideas I'd heard about, and how they were going to transform our³ business overnight.

His response? "Oh, you mean that quick-flippin'⁴? I know about that. But we're not gonna do it, because the guy you sell it to makes all the money and the gubment⁵ takes away half of it in taxes,

4

³ If you've ever worked in a family business, you know that it's "our" business when YOU'RE the one being asked to tarp the roof in the dark and the rain. It's HIS business when you're asking for a bigger piece of the pie.

⁴ My dad was from Altus, Oklahoma

⁵ And could never quite pronounce government, or library, despite having a degree in chemical engineering and having spent 40 years in the Midwest.

anyway⁶."

There was no convincing him to do anything other than what worked for him, given his huge net worth, great credit score, giant piles of cash, and hypersensitivity to paying taxes. And that meant rentals, rentals. So I joined the association, took some classes and workshops, quit and started my own business.

And I've never, ever, looked back.

Much has happened since that day in 1992. I eventually became the president of the Cincinnati Real Estate Investors Association, and then the Ohio Real Estate Investors Association, and then the National Real Estate Investors Association, and then I started the Central Ohio Real Estate Entrepreneurs (COREE) for good measure. I became a licensed broker. I created my own home study course for new investors, and then another for people who wanted to learn to wholesale properties, and then one for people who wanted to lease/option, then another on marketing, and one on creative buying, and one on negotiation, and one on real estate business systems. I've taught literally thousands of people how to get rich in real estate, and coached hundreds more one-on-one to build full-time real estate businesses. I've been the out-of-town expert at more than 200 associations and conventions across the U.S. and Canada. I've testified at the Cato Institute⁷ about the detrimental effects of government interference on the housing industry.

And, in an abnormal move for a real estate 'guru', I've continued to buy, and sell, and rent, and finance, and fix, and manage properties—and to learn new and better and more efficient ways to do these things—year in and year out.

I've dealt in investment real estate in "up" markets and "down". I've long since lost count of the number of houses I've owned or wholesaled, but I can tell you the number is upwards of 800 as of this writing. I've done my 10,000 hours. I know what works and what doesn't, and I stay on top of the fast-moving market not just because I teach other people how to get rich in real estate, but because I make

_

⁶ Did I mention that dyed-in-the-wool landlords are violently allergic to paying taxes?

⁷ Back when it was a cool libertarian think tank rather than a crazy right-wing one

the vast majority of my income by buying and selling it myself.

But most importantly, I adore what I do. Not every bit of it, of course—like any business person, I have my share of unpleasant decisions to make and grinding tasks to get through. But I do wake up every morning anxious to get to work, looking forward to what the day will bring, and thrilled to be able to take advantage of the financial independence that real estate investing has brought into my life.

That's what I want for you, too. And that's why I've written this book—to get you off to the right start investing in real estate in your own back yard.

Introduction: Why Greater Cincinnati Real Estate Rocks

It always amazes me when real estate wannabes tell me that they want to invest in, or wholesale, or retail, properties in a market different from the one in which they live.

"I heard Memphis is a great rental market, so I'm going to buy some rentals there", they'll say. Or, "Texas has such a great economy—I want to flip houses in Austin". Or, "Look at the money those guys on T.V. are making retailing houses in San Diego! I'm going to look for some houses (and contractors, and suppliers) there."

This "grass is greener" syndrome might even make sense in markets that are on the extreme edges of housing affordability, or of regulatory aggressiveness. For instance, it's extremely difficult on the coast of southern California to find a property that makes sense as a rental. Prices are too high, and rents too low as a percentage of the value of the property, to generate an acceptable return on investment⁸. Or, to put that in English, you can buy 3 houses in Cincinnati for the same price as one in San Diego, and get twice the cash flow. And in Texas, where lease/options and contracts for deed are extremely heavily regulated, those strategies are better practiced on out-of-state properties.

But the bottom line is that most real estate⁹ is not like other "investments", in the sense that you do some online research, decide if it's a good deal, invest your money, and never think about your asset except when the check comes each month, or quarter, or year. In fact, for most people who are starting with little and seeking real financial freedom, real estate "investing" isn't investing at all—it's a business that happens to use houses/apartments/mobile homes/commercial properties/whatever as inventory.

In fact, you'll find that most of your rich, successful, high-income Tri-State area colleagues will

_

⁸ Unless, as one SoCal student told me recently, your real goal is to ride the wacky California real estate wave to the top and double your money in 5-7 years. If it works, the month-over-month losses are more than made up for by the frenzy-driven appreciation. The problem, of course, is that, as in the mighty Pacific, those big waves tend to crash.

⁹Yes, there are such things as truly passive investments involving real estate. If this seems more up your alley than actual work, see page 73 for how to learn more about them.

tell you that they (or, later in their careers, someone in their company that they've trained) have been into every single solitary property they've ever bought or sold. They've driven the neighborhood. They've looked at the roof and the foundation and the kitchen and the bath and all of the other important features of the property IN PERSON. They've smelled the smells. They've looked at the "comparable sales", in the field, to make sure that those properties were, in fact, comparable in size and appearance and location.

In other words, one of the secrets of their—and your—success is being "hands on" in their evaluations of their properties BEFORE they bought them. And this is a whole lot easier when you're in West Chester and your proposed rental is in Norwood than it is when you're in Loveland and you're trying to buy a tax lien in Houston.

Luckily, here in Greater Cincinnati, we have a unique combination of factors that make real estate—whether you intend to buy and hold, buy and sell, or wholesale, or buy mortgages, or all of the above—an extremely good business to be in. It's not perfect, but it's about as close to perfect as any market I've ever seen—and I've seen a lot of them.

In fact, it might be easier *for the average person* to get rich in Cincinnati-Area real estate than it is in much of the rest of the United States, and here's why:

Our economy is built on stable ground. Unlike the dying "rust belt" cities in Ohio, which depended largely on manufacturing jobs to employ their citizens, the Cincinnati-area economy is based in the financial, academic, health care, and retail trade sectors. Ten *Fortune* 500 companies are based here. Since it's unlikely these 21st century services businesses will be shipped overseas anytime soon, Cincinnati and surrounding communities will continue to attract new workers—and therefore, new renters and buyers—for the foreseeable future.

Our real estate is affordable. With median house prices in the \$100,000-\$130,000 range depending on the county, and individual neighborhoods with properties selling for under \$50,000 on average, we live in one of the most affordable markets in the U.S.

Although "median price" means less to you as an educated investor (because you'll always pay less for a property than it's actually worth, and rarely use bank financing to buy a property), it means a LOT to you as a seller, and to the strength of the local housing market as a whole.

Affordability is not just a function of house prices, of course, but also of median household income. The National Association of RealtorsTM creates an annual affordability index that measures these factors; an affordability index of 100 means that the family earning exactly the median income for the area can exactly afford the median priced house for the area at current conventional mortgage rates and terms. A higher affordability index number means that more people can afford the median priced house. A lower affordability index means that less than 50% of the local populace can buy.

Cincinnati's affordability index is 257. San Jose California's is 86. Now, where would you rather be fixing and selling houses again?

We have a wide variety of housing stock within a relatively small geographic area. Whatever type of property, neighborhood, or strategy you'd love to specialize in, you'll probably find it within 20 miles of your front door.

Love the idea of historic rehabs? There are plenty of architecturally-interesting pre-1900 homes Columbia-Tusculum, Covington's Mainstrasse Village, and even the Incline District of Price Hill that will undoubtedly get your blood pumping.

Want to own high-cash-flow, low-priced rentals? Check out any of the city's "first suburbs" surrounding downtown.

Like the idea of rural properties that sell like hotcakes on contract for deed? Head out to Clermont County, or down to Grant County in Kentucky, or just over the border into Indiana—you'll also find your mobile homes and manufactured homes out there, if that's your preference.

And, of course there are endless neighborhoods and suburbs with houses of all sizes, ages, and price ranges available for you to buy and rent or buy and sell.

Speaking of buying and renting, we have one of the lowest purchase-price-to-rent ratios in the country—which means incredibly high returns on your investment dollar. In more expensive markets in the U.S., it's often the case that what a property will rent for is .75% or less of the value of the property. For instance, in Los Angeles, where a bread-and-butter single family home in a first-time homebuyer area might sell for \$250,000, that property will only rent for \$1,500 per month, or .6% of the value of the house. In Greater Cincinnati, that same property is only worth \$100,000—and will rent for \$1,000 a month, or 1% of the value of the property.

In our urban areas, the numbers become even better for the landlord: according to Zillow.com, the average sale price for a home in the west side neighborhood of Price Hill was \$36,000 and the average rent was \$675 a month—or 1.87% of the value—in 2014.

A relatively favorable regulatory environment. Yes, I know, the eviction courts are tenant-friendly, and the process takes too long, and foreclosures go on forever and ever here. But compared to other places in the U.S., we have fairly friendly laws here in Greater Cincinnati—laws that don't make it difficult or impossible to make money in real estate.

For instance, did you know that in Maryland, a law called PHIFA makes it possible for you to go to jail simply for negotiating to buy the home of a homeowner in foreclosure? Or that, in Texas, selling on lease/option is so restricted that it's practically never done? Or that an eviction in New York can take up to a year? Or that Section 8 voucher holders are a protected class in Illinois—you can't refuse to rent to those tenants and jump through all of Section 8's hoops without breaking the law?

Yep, we have it pretty good here—and it's largely due to a 30 year old state association called the Ohio Real Estate Investor's Association, which is one of just 5 such associations in the entire U.S. It has been tracking and lobbying against anti-investor laws for decades, which is why those of us who invest here in Ohio aren't subject to such heinous, business-ending rules and regulations.

A sharing investor community organized into a strong local and state educational association.

This may be the most important advantage that Cincinnati area investors have—and will certainly be the

key to YOUR success as a wholesaler, retailer, landlord, and real estate entrepreneur in the area.

At our premier local real estate investor's association, the Real Estate Investors Association of Greater Cincinnati (REIAGC), members at all levels of knowledge and experience meet multiple times each month to learn from experts, network, do deals, get discounts on products and services, and stay abreast of the ever-changing market.

REIA is a non-profit trade association that provides tons of education, support, and discounts to new and experienced investors alike. Plus, it's super-affordable at just \$197 per year, with payment plans available, too. Check it out at www.CincinnatiREIA.com and come to a meeting; I know you'll want to join when you do.

But for now, let's look at what you need to know to make a fortune in Cincinnati Real Estate.

Why People Get Rich in Greater Cincinnati Real Estate

We all know that real estate is the most effective way around for the average person¹⁰ to build big—like huge, like generation-spanning—wealth.

Andrew Carnegie is credited with saying, "90% of the millionaires in the United States made their money investing in real estate." More recent success books like <u>Rich Dad, Poor Dad</u> and <u>The Millionaire Next Door</u> tell the story again: rich people get rich partly because they get themselves some extra houses.

But if you've never played the real estate game, you might not have a super-clear picture of what it's really like. You might figure that you buy a property, do some repairs, put a tenant in it, and wait for the checks to start rolling in–sort of like stock dividends. Or you might imagine that buying bargain properties and reselling them is similar to day trading–all you have to do is call a broker and put the property on the market, and, presto! A buyer comes along the next day.

News flash: real estate investing isn't like the stock market. At all. And this is a good thing.

See, owning and managing, or even flipping, real estate is absolutely, positively more effort than calling your broker and telling him to buy \$1,000 worth of this or that. It also requires more education than the typical stock market investor bothers to get about the companies that he invests in. But when it's done right, it's also a whole lot more profitable and more controllable than those sorts of investments.

Ask yourself this: how many average wage-earners do you know who've gotten rich by investing in the stock market? Go ahead, count 'em. I'll wait.

1

¹⁰ That's you, unless you're going to win the lottery, or invent the next "Pet Rock", or inherit millions from your family

That didn't take too long, did it? Because the answer is zero. But there are tens of thousands of real estate millionaires in the United States who started with nothing more than a dream and a couple of hundred bucks for an association membership, and hundreds of thousands more who've doubled (or more) their incomes by investing in real estate part time.

How is this possible? How can it be that you can start with little or no money and build assets worth 6, 7, or 8 figures in real estate, but not in the stock market?

Well, for one thing, unlike stocks, real estate is highly leverageable. You can OWN—as in, have the keys to and the deed to and have all the rights to and income from—a house by putting down 20% of its value and borrowing the rest¹¹.

Real estate income is also even more tax advantaged than dividend or capital gains income—in fact, if you know what you're doing, you can even sell a property for a massive gain and not pay any capital gains taxes on the profit.¹²

At the same time, as we'll discuss in this book, real estate "investment" isn't really investment at all. It's a business, and as such, it's knowledge-intensive. If you're going to be as wealthy and high-income as you can be in real estate, there are certain things you're going to have to decide and learn and do. You may even know some people who chose to "just dive in" and buy a property without having these fundamentals in place, and who learned an expensive and painful lesson as a result.

And here's the silly thing about those ouchy mistakes: given that literally thousands of local folks have already trodden that path and overcome all the pitfalls, there's no reason for you to make the same mistakes.

The purpose of this book is to help you understand, in a general sense, what successful local investors have done to become a success, and how you can take the first, easy steps toward doing the

_

¹¹ And that's BEFORE you get our training on how to get private money, and learn to do it for \$0 down.

¹² It's called a 1031 tax-deferred exchange, and yes, it's for real.

same things.

Lesson 1: There's More than One Way to Get Rich in Cincinnati-Area Real Estate

How many different ways can you name to turn a piece of property into cash in your pocket?

If it's just one, or 2, or even 3, you don't have the full picture. And if you don't have the full picture, how are you going to choose the strategy that's best for YOU, in your particular situation and with your particular goals and needs?

The first most important thing you'll do as a budding real estate entrepreneur is take a look at the various "exit strategies"—which is just a way of saying "How you make your properties make money"—and what each one requires and how each one pays you.

Your choice of exit strategy is the most important choice you'll make in the entire course of your real estate career. Why? Because it's the details of your exit strategy that determine practically everything else about what you'll be doing on a day-to-day basis, including:

- What kinds of properties and neighborhoods you'll work with and in
- How you'll find great deals
- How you'll determine what to pay for any particular property
- Whether you'll need cash or financing to do the deal and, if so, how much and what kind
- Whether you'll need to have resources to do repairs and, if so, what level of repairs

And even more importantly, the exit strategy you choose will decide what kind of money you make, and when:

- How much profit you'll take home, on average, per deal
- When that profit will come to you (up front, or regularly over time, or at the back end of the

deal)

How that profit will be taxed (at high ordinary income rates or lower rental/interest/capital gains

This is why it's so very, very crucial that you choose the right exit strategies and for the right

reasons.

At the end of this chapter, we'll talk about HOW to choose the right strategy for you, but first,

let's have a brief primer in the kinds of exit strategies that are available to you in our market, and what

they can do for you.

Exit Strategy Categories—

From Quick Turn Cash to High Return Investments

When you first begin talking to other area investors, it might feel like everyone in the area is

doing something completely different from everyone else in the room. This guy's a wholesaler, that

gal's a bird dog, this one over here is renting properties to tenants and that one over there is doing

something involving collecting payments that aren't rent from people who live in his houses but aren't

tenants.

In fact, you might find yourself overwhelmed by the sheer number of strategies that seem to be

exercised here in the area. But when you continue to come to meetings and talk to people, you'll start to

understand that all of these different exit strategies—no matter what the practitioners are calling them or

the fine details of how they're doing them—fall into four basic categories based on the length of time

that the investor is involved in them (short, medium, or long term); the intended type of income (fast

cash or ongoing income); and whether or not the entrepreneur is doing any work or maintenance to the

property while he owns them.

When you make your choice of exit strategy, it will be in one of these 4 categories.

Category 1: Quick Turn

16

There are quick-turn strategies for nearly every kind of real estate-related asset: ugly properties, pretty properties, and even mortgages and notes. All quick-turn strategies have some characteristics in common:

- They involve 3 parties: the owner of the property (the seller); you; and the person who intends to own or occupy the property (the end buyer)
- They result in a fast (generally 30 days or less), one-time cash payment
- They often do NOT involve you taking possession of the property, but rather of tying up the property with a purchase or option agreement, then selling the agreement to a buyer who takes possession of the property. This "assignment fee" represents your entire profit from the deal—there are no ongoing payments from the end buyer to you
- Because you never take possession of the asset in question, they generally have low cash or credit requirements.
- You rarely make any investment in improvements to the property—it's sold "as is" to the end buyer.
- entity, to convert some of the income to dividends.

The profits from the transactions are taxed as ordinary income unless you take steps, via an

Examples of Quick-Turn Strategies

Wholesaling to Other Investors

Most people get into the real estate business to build long-term wealth and income, or to fix and resell houses for a 5-figure cash profit. But there's also an entire subset of real estate entrepreneurs who make a living finding great investor deals, evaluating and negotiating them, then selling those

Not all wholesalers are created equal: some lack the experience to recognize and evaluate the right deals for you; others price their deals too high to make you the money they should.

The Greater Cincinnati Area's premier wholesale company is www.YouBuyHouses.com . With over 50 years combined corporate experience and more than 500 successful transactions, YouBuyHouses gives you the deals you want ant the prices you need to pay. Get the first look at all of our deals by joining our buyers list at our website which is-you guessed itwww.YouBuyHouses.com

deals to other buy and hold or buy and retail investors at low prices.

Commonly called, simply, "wholesaling", this strategy involves getting properties under contract at very low prices, then selling the contracts to landlords or rehabbers at prices that allow those other investors to make a fair profit on the property.

- Typical property type: Single families, doubles, three families. Less commonly, apartment buildings, condos, mobile homes
- Typical areas: low-end rental to middle-end owner-occupied
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$30,000-\$150,000
- Typical condition: Extremely poor to fair
- Typical profits: \$5,000-\$10,000
- Typical timeframe: 5-30 days

Lease/Option Assignments (aka wholesaling lease/options, "ACTS", others)

In this strategy, it's a lease agreement with an option to buy, rather than a purchase agreement, that's assigned. The "buyer" in this case isn't really a buyer at all, but rather a homeowner wannabe who can't qualify for a conventional mortgage to purchase a home, and therefore rents (via the lease agreement) with a right to buy at a fixed price at some point in the future (via the option agreement). Your profit is made by finding sellers who are willing to accept an arrangement of this nature, negotiating a price and monthly payments, then finding buyers who can make an upfront payment (called an option fee) to you in order to step into the contract you've negotiated with the seller.

- Typical property type: Single family homes. Less commonly, condominiums.
- Typical areas: Middle end to high end owner occupied areas
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$100,000-\$500,000+
- Typical condition: average to excellent
- Typical profits: \$5,000-\$10,000, depending on the value of the property
- Typical timeframe: 5-30 days

Variations on the quick-turn strategies: wholesaling mortgages, wholesaling owner financed deals, wholesaling land, wholesaling performing or non-performing mortgages.

Category 2: Buy, Fix, Sell

One obvious way to make money with ANY asset is to purchase it, improve it, and then sell it based on its improved value. In real estate and real estate-related assets, the "improving it" part can be physical improvement—like turning an ugly property into a pretty property through renovation—or it can involve "re-performing" the financial aspect of the real estate, as when you buy a poorly managed apartment building, kick out the bad tenants, fill up the vacancies, and sell it at an increased price based on the increased income.

The basic concept of buy/fix (or re-perform)/sell can be applied to just about any type of property or asset, including mortgages (which are "re-performed" when they're bought as defaulted loans, and a payment plan is worked out with the borrower). However, all buy/fix/sell strategies involve these things:

- The properties are always purchased in order to give you full control over any renovation and/or management
- They require an investment of cash (yours, a lender's, or a partner's) in purchase and, often, rehab of the property
- They are relatively short term (3 months-2 years)
- The profit in these transactions is created by increasing the value of the asset
- The lion's share—and in some cases, all—of the profit is achieved upon sale of the property or asset

Examples of Buy/Fix/Sell Strategies

Selling Fixed-Up Homes to Homeowners ("Retailing")

Thanks to the popularity of T.V. shows like *Flip This House*, even non-investors are familiar with this strategy. Conceptually, it's simple to understand: buy a house, improve it, sell it to a homeowner at a price that's higher than your purchase price + repair costs + holding and finance

costs + sale costs. But the devil is, of course, in the details, and this strategy requires a LOT of attention to the details.

- Typical property type: Single family homes
- Typical areas: Middle-end homeowner areas
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$90,000-\$150,000
- Typical condition: At purchase, poor to fair. At resale, above average to excellent
- Typical profits: \$15,000-\$30,000
- Typical timeframe: 2-6 months

Selling Fixed-Up, Performing Rentals to Landlords (Selling Turnkey Rentals)

The bear market of 2008-2012 caused resurgence in interest in "passive" real estate investments, both among individuals looking to rebuild their cratered retirement investments and amongst private equity funds (commonly called "hedge funds") that pool money from passive investors and use it to buy rental properties. Many of these individuals and companies want to be as handsoff as possible in the process of renovating, renting, and managing these properties, and are looking to acquire true "turn-key" properties. As a result, a strategy has sprung up in affordable markets that involves finding distressed, under-market properties, renovating them to rental standards, qualifying and putting in a tenant, then selling the properties, often with management in place.

- Typical property type: Single family homes. More rarely, 2-3 family properties
- Typical areas: low-end rental areas to low-end owner occupied areas
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$30,000-\$100,000
- Typical condition: At purchase, poor to fair. At resale, average.
- Typical profits: \$10,000-\$25,000
- Typical timeframe: 2 months-1 year

Other variations on Buy/Fix/Sell: Purchasing and repositioning apartment buildings and commercial properties; buying defaulted notes and mortgages, re-performing them, and selling

the re-performing paper

Category 3: Buy to Hold

Buy to hold strategies are the only strategies in real estate that even start to approach the concept of actual "investing", which is to say that money is invested and a long-term return (hopefully a positive one) results.

The main variations in buy to hold strategies are in the type of asset you might choose to buy in the first place. Put any ten local buy-and-hold fans in a room together, and they'll argue all day long about whether houses, apartments, strip malls, self-storage facilities, mobile home parks, or any of a dozen other types of investment property are the "best"—and it's a debate worth having, since each class of property has its own pros and cons. But whatever it is you choose to buy and hold, you'll find that all the investments have certain things in common.

- You'll always purchase the asset or control it via an entity that you own
- Because you purchase the asset, there will be an investment of cash (yours, a lender's, or a partner's) in purchase and, often, rehab of the property
- Unlike the properties in categories 1 and 2, which are valued based on their immediate resale value in the market, buy and hold assets are valued based on their potential for return on investment
- They are long term. The expectation is always that the asset will begin producing returns relatively quickly, and that these returns will increase over time
- The profits are created in several ways: through income from the asset (that is, rent); through increasing equity in the property as any underlying financing is paid off; and through increasing value of the property via appreciation and inflation.
- These investments are generally tax-advantaged in multiple ways, including the allowance of depreciation write-offs, the fact that rental income is not subject to self-employment taxes, the availability of section 1031 tax-deferred exchanges to eliminate capital gains taxes, write-offs on interest expenses, and more

Category 4: Provide Financing For Buyers

This category of exit strategy is perhaps the most complex to explain to the inexperienced investor. The basic thing that makes it so profitable is this: lots of buyers of real estate, including both owner-occupants and other investors, want properties, but don't have the money to buy them for cash or the credit to qualify for traditional loans.

Therefore, if you have a property, and you're willing to take payments rather than demanding that a buyer bring the entire purchase price to the table, you can 1) get a higher purchase price for the property and 2) charge a higher interest rate than traditional lenders do. These two things lead to very high returns for the investors who understand how to do them.

The complexity in this strategy is that these transactions take a lot of different forms, and each has different tax and legal consequences to you as what we will loosely call "the lender". But in general, these strategies do have certain things in common:

- They don't necessarily require that you "own" the property, in the sense that the deed is in your name, but they do require that you at least "control" the property via some legal contract like a lease/option¹³ or contract for deed/land contract.
- Although this is not a requirement of these strategies, from a practical perspective, most investors sell the properties "as is", without making any repairs or improvements
- In today's market, they are medium to long term strategies. At the height of the real estate lending mania in, say, 2005-2006, it was possible to offer buyers short term financing and expect them to go to a bank and get a loan of their own in 6 months-1 year. Today, with tighter lending criteria, you can expect to collect payments for 2-15 years before the buyer either secures conventional financing or pays off the loan through natural amortization
- Uniquely among the four categories, the profit from these deals can come at 3 different points in the deal: up front, through the down payment or deposit; monthly, though a "spread" in the

¹³ Note that lease/options are not commonly practiced within the City of Cincinnati due to a city ordinance that limits the amount of the up-front "option fee" that can legally be collected by the property owner to 1.5x the monthly rent. A huge loss for potential home owners within a city that badly needs them, but a law that, luckily, effects only properties within the city limits.

payments you receive vs. any payments that you make; and at the end, if there is a balloon in the loan requiring a lump sum payment from the "buyer"

Fully explaining each of these forms, their pros and cons, the properties on which they can be exercised, the state and national laws that govern them, and the various types of borrowers could literally take up an entire book in itself. So, instead, let's look at some common types of this strategy used here in the area.

"Sandwiching" Owner Financing

The immediate thought that many local investors have when they hear about the idea of buying a house and then selling it with owner financing is, "The problem is, I'm one of those people who doesn't have the cash or credit to buy a property in the first place!" That's why one of the most common category 4 exit strategies relies on an ENTRANCE strategy of BUYING the property with owner financing, as well. In this scenario, you find a seller who is willing to take payments—whether by allowing you to "assume" his existing mortgage, or, if his property is paid off, by carrying a seller-held mortgage with acceptable monthly payments FROM you. You then find a buyer—typically an owner-occupant, in these cases—who is willing and able to make the upfront payment, the monthly payments, and meet any balloon you might put into the financing.

A typical scenario for this kind of deal might be: You buy a nice 3 bedroom ranch from the owner "subject to" the existing \$105,000 mortgage with payments of \$750/month and no money down. You then lease the property with an option to buy to a nice young couple for \$125,000 with \$5,000 down (your first profit check), monthly rent of \$1,000 (for a \$250/month profit), and a 3 year term, at which point you'll collect your remaining \$15,000 in profit (\$120,000 purchase price - \$5,000 already collected down - \$100,000 now owed to the seller's bank)

- Typical property type: Single family homes
- Typical areas: middle to high-end owner occupied areas
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$100,000+

• Typical condition: Average to excellent

• Typical profits: \$20,000-\$50,000, spread out over the term of the deal

• Typical timeframe: 2-5 years

"Repair for Equity" Deals

There is a basic problem with selling properties that need work to be livable in today's market: there's no conventional financing available for people who want to buy them, no matter how good a deal the property might be or how qualified the buyer might be to make the necessary repairs.

This has led to a roaring revival of a type of arrangement that was popular prior to the financing madness of the early part of this century: the "Repair for Equity" deal. In these scenarios, buyers (sometimes investor/renovators, sometimes homeowners) who have the will, experience, and resources to make repairs to a property buy it from you with a small down payment but at a higher price than you could sell it for if you were requiring the buyer to bring his own money to the table.

A typical scenario for this kind of deal might be: You buy a beat-up, older house in a marginal area for \$15,000. You sell it to a contractor for \$29,000 with \$1,000 down at 8% interest, secured by a mortgage and note or a contract for deed. The resulting monthly payments are \$339/month + taxes and insurance for 10 years, at which point the buyer owns the property free and clear. As the "lender", you have no expenses on the property, which makes your actual yield somewhere between 25% and infinity, depending on whether you paid cash for the property or financed it initially.

- Typical property type: For handy homeowners: single family homes. For investor/renovators: any kind of income property
- Typical areas: Any, but usually rental to mid-level owner occupied
- Typical "after repaired" values of the properties: \$30,000-?
- Typical condition: poor to fair
- Typical profits: Depends on the price range of the property being sold. Returns, if

property is purchased right, are in the 20%-50% range.

• Typical timeframe: 5-15 years

The Most Important Thing You'll Do In Your Entire Real Estate Career: How to Choose the Right Exit Strategy

Too many people fall into the trap of picking a strategy—and, often, investing in expensive education about that strategy, based on hype, or excitement, or emotion, or simple lack of information that there's more than one thing that can be done in real estate. At our association, we're constantly hearing guests say things like:

"I bought some rentals because my uncle's a big-time landlord and I've seen what it's done for him, but what I really need is to pay off my \$25,000 in credit card bills because the monthly payments are sucking me dry. Is there some way that real estate could help me with that?"

Or...

"I was listening to a webinar and I got super-excited about wholesaling, so I spent \$5,000 on a course, but I have a really high-income job and Uncle Sam is taking 50% of my profits. What I really need is retirement income, how do I get that?"

Or, saddest of all...

"I spent \$25,000 on a complete soup-to-nuts program from a national seminar company about how to do everything with every property, and now I'm practically a Ph.D. in real estate, but I can't do a deal because I'm hopelessly confused about where to start."

Basically, exit strategies for residential real estate break down into 4 categories, each of which provides a different set of benefits. Within those four categories, there are lots of variations as to the kind of properties on which the exit strategy can be implemented, the exact ways in which they're implemented, and so on.

Mark my words: there is one, and only one, correct way to choose an exit strategy, and it's to decide first what YOU need in your financial life.

It doesn't matter what made your friend rich.

It doesn't matter what the guru said was the "only" way or "hottest" way or "best" way to make money in real estate today.

It doesn't even matter what your fellow REIA members are doing, or are telling you that you should do—unless, of course, they know your particular situation, in which case you might want to consider their experienced advice.

Whatever you need—quick cash, long-term income, tax breaks, growth—there's an exit strategy that you can implement right here in your own back yard that will provide it. So the proper order in which to make the very-important decision about exit strategy is this:

- 1. Sit down—with your significant other, if there is one—and take a look at your financial situation. What do you MOST need to correct or improve that situation right now? Is it to pay off consumer debt? Build reserves? Set up income for retirement? Start saving for the kids' college education?
- 2. **Learn about the basic exit strategies from a high-level view.** What are they? What do they require in the way of time, money, credit, and other resources? What kind of money do they generate, and how much money, and how often?
- 3. Choose 1 or 2 exit strategies that best meet your goals, and invest in studying them in depth. Once you've narrowed down the options, it makes sense to invest some time and money in learning the exact tactics, methods, documents, and practices needed to implement your chosen strategy. Any successful practitioner of real estate, in any strategy, will tell you that this is how THEY learned what to do (and just as importantly, what NOT to do), and that buying an

expert's system is generally MUCH cheaper (and quicker to implement) than making all the rookie mistakes yourself.

- 4. **Implement your exit strategy and continue to learn, making adjustments as necessary**. Do what needs to be done, over and over, even when it's scary and frustrating, until it works. When you have questions or run into problems, don't give up—ask your fellow association members how to overcome them and move on. Above all, don't get distracted by other "opportunities"—you chose your strategy for a reason, and just because the next speaker at the next association meeting is doing something completely different doesn't mean that you should, too.
- 5. **Reach your goal, set a new one**. Once you've taken care of your immediate cash needs, or built the reserves, or put aside enough money or assets to pay for college, you might well find that it's time to explore a new strategy—maybe one that builds more passive income for retirement. Or perhaps you're on track for a prosperous retirement, and the next goal is to create enough current income to quit your job. In any case, it's fine to learn the next exit strategy, and the next, and the next—but only AFTER you've implemented the first.

Lesson 2: Never Pay Retail. Not Ever.

There's an old saying among experienced real estate investors that goes, "You make your money when you BUY." And while I'm not a big believer in conventional wisdom for conventional wisdom's sake, this particular old saw has proven itself to be true over and over again.

"You make your money when you buy" is a shorthand way of saying "If you get a good deal at the start of the deal, it's pretty easy to make money. If you make a bad deal at the beginning, it's pretty hard to make money."

And for us, as real estate entrepreneurs, getting a good deal means one or both of these things:

- 1. Buying at a price that is significantly—like 30% or more—below the current, as-is value of the property AND/OR
- 2. Buying on terms that are significantly better than "market terms"—low or no down payment, low or no interest rate, small or even no monthly payments, no qualifying based on credit or income, and so on.

In other words, We. Don't. Pay. Retail.

Ever.

In some of the strategies we discussed in the last chapter, it's obvious WHY you can't pay full price, or even close to full price, for a property. If your intention is to repair and sell the property quickly, or to wholesale it to another investor immediately, your profit is <u>only</u> guaranteed if you pay an under-market price.

But even if your plan is to buy rental properties, paying full price and getting conventional financing generally doesn't work as a money-making strategy. One or the other, maybe, but not both.

Unfortunately, the reasons for this become clear only AFTER you've made the purchase, so let me save you some pain and fill you in on the secret of why you don't want to make this rookie mistake:

Cash flow \neq Rent – (principal + interest + taxes + insurance)

There are other, significant expenses involved in owning rental properties. Vacancy losses, turnover costs, and maintenance alone will cost you 20-30% of your gross rents on a single family home. "Reserves"—the money you put aside for that moment in 20 years when the brand-new roof (and furnace, and windows, and water heater, and driveway, and, and, and) needs to be replaced—are another 10% that you shouldn't consider profits.

Take any rental you own or have considered purchasing and do this formula:

Rent

- -30% of gross rent (for vacancy, maintenance, and reserves)
- -taxes and insurance

-your monthly mortgage payment, if you pay full price, put 20% down, and finance conventionally ¹⁴ Your monthly cash flow

Is that number at the bottom really enough to excite you? Like enough to own and maintain that house and deal with those tenants and all their problems?

Now do this one:

(Your monthly cash flow x 12) ÷ Your upfront cash investment in down payment, loan costs, and initial repairs

29

¹⁴ If you're not sure how to calculate this number, just Google "free mortgage calculator" and enter the interest rate, loan amount, and term of the loan

Multiply the number you get by 100, and that's your rate of return on the cash you invested. Excited now? Because if that number is less than 12%, you could have done better by investing in someone else's deal, passively.

So how, you might ask, does not paying retail "fix" the low cash flow and low rate of return problem? Easy: by lowering the loan amount (borrowing 80% of 100% of the value means a bigger loan than borrowing 80% of 70% of the value), or by lowering the monthly payment by getting a lower interest rate on the loan.

And we're just getting started on all the great reasons that you shouldn't pay retail for properties. . Here are a few more:

At www.YouBuyHouses.com, our properties are always priced a investor prices of 30% or more off the retail value. How do we do it? By spending thousands of dollars a month finding the great deals, so you don't have to, and negotiating prices that put money in your pocket AND ours!

Buying under market means that you can liquidate quickly, without taking a bath. Each and every week, I talk to landlords who desperately want to sell their rentals. Sometimes the reasons are personal (job transfer, can't handle the tenants, divorce, increase in hours spent at work), and sometimes they're financial (property is losing money, lost job, facing foreclosure). In any case, they need to sell fast, and...

When these landlords have purchased their properties at retail in the last 2-3 years, and did what I just told you NOT to do, they usually end up walking away from all or part of the cash they invested in the property, AND sometimes bringing money to closing to pay off their loan, as well.

See, the problem is that the rental that they bought 2 years ago for \$90,000 is now worth about...\$85,000, because when they bought it, it had brand new carpet, was freshly painted, and had new appliances. Now it's got 5 years of tenant damage. Sure, if the owner could invest the money to bring it back into its original condition, it would be worth \$92,000, but if he had that kind of time, he wouldn't be a motivated seller.

And because his loan has barely amortized, he owes \$70,000 on the original \$72,000 balance. Oh, and because I'm a SMART investor, I only want to pay him 70% of the \$85,000 value, or \$59,500. But even if he could find someone who wanted to pay 90%, he'd only STILL have to bring a few thousand dollars to the closing, because by the time he's paid his Realtor a 6% commission and paid his part of the closing costs and the transfer fees and the deed prep and so on, he'd be unlikely to net more than about \$68,000 on the sale.

On the other hand, the seller who got a 30% discount when HE bought can generally sell and come close to breaking even, even if he has to sell soon after the purchase. Everyone plans to keep their rentals forever, but sometimes life gets in the way. If the worst happens, would you rather take a loss, or make a profit when you sell?

Buying under market bullet-proofs your investment, whatever happens in the

economy. One of the fears in the minds of many real estate investors today is that prices will take another 2008-level tumble. The idea that, except in the typical bubble markets on the east and west coasts, real estate slowly and steadily increases in value year in and year out was beaten out of all of us by the crash. Although the underlying factors that drove that historic cratering of the market aren't with us anymore, the ghost of losses past still, reasonably, haunts us.

But think of it this way: if you've purchased your property at a below-market price to begin with, a 30% drop in property values will simply bring the value of other properties in line with what you paid to begin with. You'll lose net worth on paper, but you won't lose money even if you sell. Or if you do, it will be significantly less than those around you who paid full retail for their units.

Perhaps more importantly, by buying under market, you'll have more flexibility to ride out economically troubled times than other, less savvy investors. Imagine that America enters another depression, with 30% of all adults out of work. Will people still need a place to live? You bet. Will they be able to pay as much rent as before? Probably not. Since you bought right in the first place, you will be able to afford to lower your payments, thus attracting tenants even when no one else can.

All things being equal, buying under market will make you richer, quicker. Let's say you have

\$300,000 to invest, and you can either buy 2 rental houses that rent for \$1200 each at their full values of \$150,000 each, or you can buy 3 at \$100,000 each. Which is better?

Well, duh. Buying 3 is better in every conceivable way. When you buy 2, you have \$300,000 worth of houses that you paid \$300,000 for—and thus no equity. When you buy 3, you have \$450,000 worth of houses (3 at \$150,000 value each) that you paid \$300,000 for, and you've ADDED \$150,000 to your net worth.

When you buy 2, you get \$2,400 a month in gross rents for your \$300,000 investment. When you buy 3, you get \$3,600 a month in gross rents—for the same \$300,000 investment.

Maybe you DON'T have \$150,000 to start with—most of our members don't. But the same idea applies—buying cheaper means more equity, more return, and more wealth, faster.

OK, I Get It...

But Who's Gonna Let Me Buy Their Property for Pennies on the Dollar?

I've seen hundreds of budding investors struggle with the very basic question of, "How am I ever going to find anyone who wants to sell me a house at below retail price? Why would anyone do that, when they could just find someone else to pay them more?" ¹⁵

One of the key things a real estate entrepreneur in ANY market has to learn and really, really internalize is that the real estate market is an inefficient market, and as a result, good deals can be had by those who know where to look and how to make offers.

Let me explain further:

A house (or apartment building or strip mall or what have you) is a big, expensive investment.

32

¹⁵ And the answer is NOT "I have to find someone who doesn't know what their property is worth, and take advantage of that fact." EVERYONE today knows what their property is worth, and if they don't, they know how to go on the internet and find out. Sellers don't sell at below-retail prices and terms because they're stupid, or ignorant. They sell at below-retail prices and terms because they're MOTIVATED.

In fact, for most Americans who own real estate, it's the biggest single investment they'll ever make, and a significant percentage of their net worth will be tied up in it.

It's also a relatively illiquid asset, meaning that it's hard to sell it quickly. Because most properties cost more than most people can simply write a check for, the "conventional" method of buying properties involves putting a little money down and borrowing the rest from a bank. And involving a bank—or any other traditional lender—means that the property and the borrower have to meet certain criteria in order for the lender to agree to become involved in the deal.

The very process of finding out if the property and the buyer meet those criteria—an appraisal, inspection, credit check, employment verification, underwriting, and so on—takes weeks if not months...and the outcome is never certain. The property might fail; the borrower might fail; and if so, the seller is back to square one in trying to sell his property.

What's more, the standard way in which real estate is marketed and by which the price is negotiated is slow. Think about how stocks are sold: if you're interested in buying shares in a particular company, you'll simply be able to go online (or, heck, turn on the T.V. and watch the ticker at the bottom of any of the various financial channels), find out what that stock is selling for today (in other words, how a very large number of potential buyers are valuing it right now), decide if you value it the same way, and, if so, log into your online brokerage account and place an order to buy it. 10 minutes later, you're the proud owner of those stocks.

But there aren't tens of thousands of potential buyers for any given parcel of real estate. Each of the handful of buyers who might be interested in a particular property will value it slightly differently—this one loves the fenced yard and wants to pay a little more for it, that one loves the house but doesn't like the street so much, and so will buy it, but only if he can get a discount.

And in order for a buyer and a seller of a particular property to even FIND one another, the seller has to take extraordinary steps (hiring an agent, placing and maintaining ads, and so on) to let potential buyers know that the property is for sale.

So order for the seller of any property to turn it into money, he's typically going to:

- 1. Prepare the property for sale (clean it, paint it, repair it, etc.), a process that can take weeks or months
- 2. Find a real estate agent and fill out reams of paperwork and disclosures
- 3. Let the real estate agent place it in MLS
- 4. Wait for various buyers to find the listing, make an appointment, see the property, evaluate it, and make an offer
- 5. Negotiate the terms of the offer
- 6. Wait for the buyer and the property to be approved for financing, and assuming that all goes well,
- 7. Wait for the closing to be scheduled and occur

This is why, even in relatively 'hot' markets, it takes 60 days, on average, to sell a desirable, well-priced property. And exposing the property to the market in this way is the BEST way to get the highest possible price for any given piece of real estate.

But not every seller has that option. What if, for instance:

- The property itself has no chance of qualifying for an institutional loan, and the seller doesn't
 have the time or money to improve the condition to the point where a conventional lender will
 consider making a loan on it
- The seller is under some external time constraint that means that he can't risk waiting 60, or 90,
 or 300 days for the property to sell, such as an impending tax foreclosure or the need to cash out
 of the property quickly in order to take advantage of another opportunity that he can't risk losing
- The seller is simply emotionally unprepared to continue to own the property—he's fed up with it, and just wants it gone

In other words, some sellers need to sell FAST a whole lot more than they need to sell for top price and all cash.

It's by finding these sellers that your successful local colleagues buy properties of all sorts for pennies on the dollar, or with terms that you can hardly believe until you've done it yourself.

In every market, 'hot' and 'cold', there are sellers in these situations. Typical things that would tend to motivate the owner of a piece of property to sell it under the prices and terms you want include:

- The seller inherited the house, and just wants to cash out fast without doing an repairs or upgrades
- The seller is facing foreclosure for non-payment of his mortgage, or of his taxes
- The seller has had health problems that have made it impossible for him to maintain the property
- The seller bought the property with the intention of repairing and selling it, but ran out of money or found the renovation process too difficult. It's not finished, and he wants to be rid of it
- The seller is getting divorced, or is part of a failed partnership, and the property has to be liquidated for him to be shut of his ex-spouse or ex-partner
- The seller has had one or more bad tenants who've abused his property and not paid him, and he's sick of the whole thing
- The seller bought a new house before he sold his old one, and is now making 2 payments that he can't afford
- The seller needs to sell his old house in order to buy his new one
- The seller has moved out of the area and no longer needs the house
- The seller bought the property far from where he lives, and has found management to be too difficult
- The seller has a business opportunity that he needs money to take advantage of, and needs to sell the house to get the cash
- The city is on the seller's back about the condition of the property

Of course, the easiest way to find great deals is simply to sign up for our buyer's list at www.YouBuyHouses.com and let US do the hard work of finding the deals

in the first place!

- The property suffered a fire, flood, or other damage; the insurance company paid the seller for the property; the seller took the money and didn't make the repairs
- The seller is elderly and going into a nursing home and must sell the property in order to meet Medicaid requirements
- The seller won the lottery and bought a mansion and really doesn't care about his old bread-and-butter house anymore ¹⁶
- The seller is a company or institution that acquired the property through foreclosure, inheritance, etc. and isn't in the business of owning properties
- And dozens of other situations.

If you've ever BEEN the motivated seller of a property, for one of these or any other reason, you know how grateful you were when a ready, willing, and able buyer showed up with a solution—even when that solution was not a full-price cash offer.

If you want to buy properties cheap, all you have to do is be the person with that solution, and find the seller who needs it.

1

¹⁶ Yes, that actually happened to me once

Lesson 3: There's No Such Thing as a "Self-Made" Millionaire

Don't get me wrong: there are tens of thousands--maybe hundreds of thousands--of people in the United States right now with 7 and 8 figures net worth who got it ALL because they started and grew a real estate investing business.

And most of these folks will tell you that when they started, they had little or no spare cash, and no special real estate acumen, and not much in the way of a credit score.

So, yes, in the sense that you can be born without a silver spoon in your mouth, and live a pretty average life, and even make some big giant financial mistakes along the way, and still end up in the top 10% of all Americans in terms of your assets and income, it's possible to be a "self-made" real estate mogul.

But when you look closely at the really successful real estate entrepreneurs around you, you'll notice something that they all have in common: a team of experts they've built over the years to do the things that have to be done to run a real estate business, but that aren't actually part of the "money making" process. And from this perspective, they aren't self-made at all, but rather "team-made".

The Two Kinds of Activities in Your

Real Estate Business

There are 2 kinds of tasks you'll find yourself faced with in starting--and particularly in growing--your real estate business. First, there are the ones the directly make you money, including:

- Talking to motivated sellers
- Making decisions about what to pay for a property, and on what terms
- Making decisions about and managing renovations to a property
- Making decisions about how to price a property for rental or sale
- Choosing appropriate tenants
- Negotiating with buyers and renters

Second, and it's a much longer list, there are the task that are necessary to 'keep the trains running on time', as it were, but which actually distract you from doing the things that add to your bottom line. These include:

- Mailing out marketing, hanging bandit signs¹⁷, putting ads in craigslist
- Balancing the bank accounts
- Preparing and filing taxes
- Doing title work on a property you're proposing to buy
- Mowing lawns, cleaning hallways, and other routine maintenance
- Showing vacant units¹⁸
- Creating and maintaining your website
- Maintaining and updating your computers, software, and equipment
- Coordinating and performing closings to buy, sell, and rent properties
- Inspecting houses for termites and other wood destroying pests
- Taking maintenance calls from tenants that will just be referred to the maintenance guy anyway

And there are literally 100 others I could list.

38

¹⁷ If you're not familiar with this particular piece of jargon, it refers to those plastic signs that say something like "I Buy Houses" and hang on telephone poles in a neighborhood near you.

¹⁸ Every long-time landlord reading this is thinking, "what do you mean this doesn't make me money? Vacancies are expensive! Filling them is a money-making priority!" Agreed--but the question I'd have for you is, "Is waiting on a front porch for a prospect that you know perfectly well only has a 60% chance of showing up at all, and a 20% chance of showing up AND applying, and a 10% chance of showing up, applying, and passing the application process a good use of your time?" 'Cause if you have a better use for those hours, there's this thing called a lockbox...

You'll note that some of these things are simply rote work that a low-paid administrator or maintenance person easily do, while some are things that professionals like accountants, title companies, attorneys, and coders can actually do better, more easily, and more professionally than you can.

At www.YouBuyHouses.com, one of the many services we offer our buyers is our willingness to share OUR proven team with you. Have you registered for our buyer's list yet?

Yes, you will meet real estate entrepreneurs who take pride in the fact that they do literally everything it takes to keep their business up and running, from book keeping and tax preparation to doing their own title searches and closings to performing their own work on their properties. But the really successful ones--the ones that you most want to emulate--understand that the sheer amount of time and energy it takes to learn and execute all of these activities limits the amount of wealth and income they can build—and the time they have to enjoy it. Whenever there are professionals out there who can do any job as well as or better than you can, it's almost always to your advantage to pay them to do it, and use your own time more profitably.

A common example of this is renovators who, rather than supervising the work on their properties, actually do some or all of it themselves.

Often, these are folks who come from a building or contracting background, and figure that the fastest, surest, and cheapest way to get repairs done is to do it themselves. But the flaw in this seemingly-logical thought is that, in terms of potential dollars per hour worked, renovation does not pay nearly as well as deal-hunting.

Look at it like this: if you're a skilled painter, you might be able to paint a 1200 square foot home in less than three 8-hour days. And hiring another skilled painter to do the job might cost you \$1500 in labor. If you do the work yourself, you've saved—and therefore, have effectively been PAID—\$1500 for 3 days' work.

If you're used to trading your hours for dollars like that, you might just think that saving \$1,500 is a pretty good way to spend 3 days. But when you understand how to find, negotiate, finance, and sell

real estate, spending those 3 days painting at \$500 a day is an unforgivable waste of your time.

Why? Because if you'd just hired a painter to do the work and spent that half a week finding another deal, and, let's say, wholesaling it for a mere \$5,000 cash profit, you'd clearly be able to pay the painter AND, I don't know, go to Mexico for a week.

And the same applies to many functions that you COULD perform in your own business, but probably shouldn't. And that's where your "team" comes in.

Your team is a group of experts and professionals who you pay for labor, services, and advice as needed. Your team members are not necessarily employees—in fact, most will be independent business people who serve other real estate entrepreneurs, as well. But, like employees, they need to be people who are great at what they do, whom you trust and get along with, and who ultimately add to your bottom line.

You will build your team over time, as you meet and network with the people who provide the products and services you need. You will add team members as needed, replace them where necessary, and—above all—make the relationship profitable and easy for THEM as well as for yourself.

Your Team Members

The team <u>you</u> need depends in part on how much investing you are doing, and more so on which strategies you're employing. For instance, wholesalers don't typically need maintenance companies or property managers; retailers don't need eviction attorneys.

So, ultimately, you'll pick and choose from this list to build the team that will help you become a team-made millionaire.

Your Real Estate Agent. Most successful real estate investors have a real estate agent on their team, and the reason is more complex than you might think.

A good real estate agent can do a lot more than help you find, look at, and make offers on properties that are listed through the Multiple Listing Service. A GOOD agent--one who understands real estate as an investment, not just as a product to be sold for a commission--can also help you choose the right areas in which to buy properties for rental or resale by researching things like average time on the market for resale, sale prices of similar properties, and so on.

Your agent can also take some of the chores related to closing properties off your back—for instance, he can work with your lender in scheduling appraisals and inspections, provide your closing agent with a legal description and loan payoff, and work with the seller or his agent to overcome any problems during the process.

A <u>really</u> good agent will also aggressively negotiate on your behalf, acting in your best interest to get the price and terms you want for each property.

And when you're first getting started, your agent will also be able to explain some of the technicalities of the offer process, including how much earnest money is typically offered in your area, how to fill out the purchase contract, how long to leave the offer open, and so on. And, of course, your agent can also list and market a finished property, if you decide to retail it.

Unfortunately, real estate agents who are both pro-investor and relatively knowledgeable about investment strategies are few and far between. Most agents are formally trained to do one thing and one thing only: sell properties to qualified home owners, who want homes in good condition, who pay retail prices, and who get their financing from traditional lenders. It is often difficult or impossible for you to overcome this training and convince a particular agent that you really do want to see ugly, smelly houses that you can buy for pennies on the dollar. It's the rare agent who recognizes that it's better to have a client who buys 10 houses a year, year in and year out, at \$50,000 each than to have one client who buys a \$200,000 home once every 5 years.

So in choosing your agent, you need one who is:

• Comfortable with presenting and defending low offers

- Willing to accept the fact that 9 out of 10 of your offers will be rejected–sometimes angrily
- Willing to keep you updated on a weekly basis on new properties on the market that fit your criteria
- Knowledgeable about–or willing to learn–the ins and outs of your strategy
- Willing to research additional information about neighborhoods, property values, and so on
- Not competing with you for the same properties—that is, not investing in the same houses and areas that you are

Often, this agent is a relatively new licensee who has few listings and a limited client base. These are the folk who are most likely to have the time and energy to do what you need them to do—and are the most open to learning how to be an investor's agent.

And, by the way, you do not typically pay your buyer's agent for his services—the seller does. But when you find a great agent who makes you a lot of money, don't hesitate to "tip" him by sending a little extra cash to his broker, or taking him out to a nice dinner, or making some other gesture of appreciation. Remember, you want to stay at the TOP of his list when a great deal comes across his desk!

A home inspector. One of the key skills you'll need to acquire in your pursuit of real estate riches will be the ability to quickly determine what a property needs in order to be rentable or salable. Most successful real estate entrepreneurs spend no more than 30 minutes in a single family home examining the condition of the systems and cosmetics before they write an offer to the seller based on what they've seen.

But those offers almost always contain an "inspection contingency" allowing you to hire a professional to go over the property with a fine-toothed comb before you actually have to purchase it. This process--which is only instigated once you've already agreed on a price with the seller--is usually completed by a professional home inspector.

A home inspector's job is to spend several hours carefully examining the systems and structure of properties looking for defects that could come back to haunt you later. A good home inspector has a

detailed system and special equipment for accomplishing this job, and can do it a whole lot better than you can.

At the same time, in some parts of the country, home inspectors do not have to be licensed or even certified, and many so-called inspectors have no experience in construction, renovation, engineering, or even inspection. Since there is limited regulation of home inspectors, literally anyone can take a correspondence course in inspection, declare themselves a home inspector, and hang out a shingle. Clearly, this is not the type of home inspector you're looking for.

Your ideal home inspector will have at least 5 years experience, plus a background in engineering or construction. I prefer inspectors who are certified by the American Society of Home Inspectors (ASHI), as ASHI inspectors are required to achieve a certain level of education and experience before becoming certified.

A home inspection costs \$250-\$450 for a single family home, with prices increasing as the number of units increase. This is a small price to pay to uncover problems that could potentially cost you thousands if they go undiscovered. Again, you will schedule a home inspection only <u>after</u> you have an accepted offer, with a contingency that the inspection must meet with your approval. And always accompany your home inspector when he inspects your potential purchase—it's a great seminar in how properties are built and how they deteriorate.

A pest inspector. Why, you might ask, do you need both a pest inspector AND a property inspector? Because wood-destroying pests are surprisingly common in this part of the country, and critters like termites, carpenter ants, powder-post beetles, dry rot, and other wood-destroying organisms create expensive structural damage. Because home inspectors don't look for the most pernicious little pests in the country today--bedbugs. And because pest inspections are MUCH cheaper than whole-house inspections, generally costing less than \$100, and so are a kind of no-brainer when you're acquiring a property to rehab and sell or to keep.

Unlike whole-house inspections, pest inspections are typically done by the same companies that

treat¹⁹ the problem, so watch for inspectors who find pests every time they look–unfortunately, some inspectors commonly find phantom termites that need to be treated with real, \$1,200 pesticides.

A title agent or closing attorney. In some states, it's traditional to hold property closings at the office of an attorney. In others, bonded title agents are the professionals who close property sales and loans.

Whichever system is used in your area, the function of the closing agent is the same: he searches the title to the property for liens and "defects" (improper transfers, unreleased mortgages, problems with prior deeds, etc.), issues an insurable opinion of title, prepares the appropriate paperwork, gathers the necessary signatures, and distributes the sales proceeds and documentation to the parties involved.

It's important to choose a closing agent who understands that many of your transactions will not be "typical" closings with a buyer, a seller, and a conventional lender. For instance, if you plan to wholesale properties, your title agent needs to understand how an assignment of contract works. If your financing is coming from the seller or a private lender, he must be able to prepare and file the right documents to protect the lender's interest in the property. If you are buying rentals, he needs to understand how to prorate the rents to the day of closing, and how to account for the deposits, which should be turned over to you at the closing. In other words, your closing agent should be someone who has experience working with investors and the deals they do.

A handyperson and/or a general contractor and/or subcontractors. If you choose a strategy that requires renovation and/or ongoing maintenance of properties, one of the most important components of your team will be reliable, competent, affordable folks who can do this sort of work.

Unfortunately, reliable, competent, affordable contractors are amongst the most difficult members of your team to find and keep. Just about any investor/renovator can tell you endless stories about contractors who covered up, rather than repairing, major problems in a property; who left a job half done and disappeared from the face of the earth; who didn't bother to pull needed permits, or didn't pay his subcontractors and caused a lien to be placed against a property, or forged a worker's comp certificate,

1

¹⁹ By which I mean killing, of course. "Treating" sounds like they're getting chiropractic help or something. Which would be sort of ineffective since they're invertebrates.

then got hurt on the job, then sued the owner for his injuries.

The very best way to find people for this part of your team is simply to network with Association members. Asking your colleagues who they've used for roof work, window replacement, floor refinishing, clean up, yard work, and so on will generally yield a plethora of recommendations, both pro and con. While the fact that Joe Contractor did a great job for your fellow rehabber doesn't guarantee he'll do the same for you, it's a pretty good sign that he'll work out.

A bookkeeper and/or accountant. You'll need a bookkeeper when you own so many properties that keeping track of the incoming and outgoing payments begins to take up a significant portion of your time. You'll need an accountant almost as soon as you begin buying investment properties.

As a real estate investor (or the owner of any small business, for that matter), you'll quickly discover that your largest expense is income taxes.

Furthermore, you'll find yourself bogged down in a morass of new tax forms for calculating and reporting rental income, capital gains, depreciation, self-employment and alternative minimum taxes, and literally dozens of other brand-new requirements foisted upon you by the various taxing authorities. Filling out this paperwork yourself is a major waste of your time, and a good, competent account WHO UNDERSTANDS REAL ESTATE can show you dozens of little-known, legal ways to save and defer taxes.

The key to that sentence is, of course, "Accountant who understands real estate". Most, frankly, don't, and few will admit that their grasp on your available deductions is less-than-adequate. ²⁰

Again, the best way to find a good accountant is to find out which one other investors in your area are using. No matter how married you are to the guy who's been doing your taxes since you were in college, you'll want to switch to one of the handful of tax people who do most of the tax work for most of the investors and landlords in any given area. The difference will be thousands of dollars a year in your

-

²⁰ Want to check whether yours does? Ask him what dealer status is, and why it will cost you an extra 12% in taxes on your wholesale and retail deals. Ask him what the tax treatment of a property sold on land contract is. Ask him whether you'll be subject to passive loss limitations on your rentals. If he says something along the lines of, "Duh, huh?" you have the wrong accountant.

pocket.

An insurance agent. You'd think finding an insurance agent for your rentals and rehabs would be as easy as falling off a log. Surely that talking lizard has a product for you, right? Or maybe Flo?

But it's a little more complicated than that. Amazingly, most insurance agents don't have products for, or don't understand how to, appropriately insure non owner occupied properties. And since you may not know either, finding the right agent is pretty important.

At a minimum, you should have a policy on each property to protect against loss and liability; a business insurance policy that covers your equipment, computers, and staff; and an umbrella liability policy of \$1-\$2 million (that's right, MILLION dollars) to cover you for the things the other policies don't. A good agent will also talk to you about your needs for key person insurance, disability, and other insurance you may want or need as a business owner.

The right insurance agent <u>for you</u> will also know how to properly write policies to insure properties owned by partnerships, corporations, limited liability companies, trusts, and other entities you might form. He'll understand what type of insurance to write when you've bought a property via an option or contract for deed, and are not the titleholder. He'll know how to name your private lenders on the policy so that their financial interests are protected.

Yes, any old agent can sell you a policy. Your agent needs to have at least a basic understanding of what you do to insure you properly.

A real estate attorney. As a real estate entrepreneur, you'll need legal advice from time to time. From document preparation to reliable information about tenant/landlord law, contract law, fair housing, agency, and related issues.

And if you're smart, this person is NOT going to be the lawyer who handled your divorce, or drafted your will, or settled your car accident case.

Most attorneys are generalists, meaning that they'll take any case that comes along. Avoid these folks at all costs, and look for a specialist who's had additional training and experience in the field of real estate. Otherwise, the advice you get will be of limited value to you—and indeed, could get you into trouble.

A corporate attorney. In a later lesson, we'll talk about the importance of good business set up both for asset protection and tax-minimizing purposes.

Once you're convinced that you need an LLC, and you will be, the next step is to make sure that the lawyer you're hiring to set it up for you understands what he's doing. Just as you need an attorney who specializes in real estate to handle your real estate transactions, you need one who specializes in asset protection to draft and file your limited partnerships, corporations, trusts, and LLCs.

A private lender, partner, or other form of "money person"²¹. We'll discuss more about the "why" of using Other People's Money (OPM) in the lesson on creative finance. But one of the "hows" is by finding one or more people with some unused cash who'd like to invest it in real estate, passively.

Private lenders and partners are individuals who take advantage of the safety and relatively high returns of real estate WITHOUT the management, rehab, and liability problems that accompany ownership. They do this by providing mortgage loans to investors (if they're private lenders) under terms agreed to between the investor and lender, or by providing money in return for partial ownership (if they're partners).

Unfortunately, unlike many of the other service providers you'll have on your team, money people can't be found simply by Googling them or even asking your fellow association members. Yes, there are non-traditional lenders--commonly called hard money lenders--that will make short term, high-rate loans without most of the qualifications of conventional loan. But the kind of longer-term financing you need to buy and hold properties comes primarily from these independent money people--many of whom don't even know that being a lender for or partner in real estate is an option, until you tell them so.

2

²¹ It's important to note that partnering with or borrowing money from others is an activity heavily regulated by the state and federal government. We strongly recommend that you understand the rules around advertising, disclosure, registration, and so on before pursuing private money.

This is why you don't so much "find" private lenders and partners, as DEVELOP them. You determine, based on your exit strategy, what you'll offer in the way of interest or profits. You find people who have money. You explain why your deal or business is a good investment. You disclose the risks. You have the paperwork drawn up. YOU drive the entire transaction and relationship.

Private money people will be a crucial part of your team, especially as your business grows and more and more deals start coming your way. The entire area--how to set up deals, find potential lenders, do the paperwork, and so on--deserves your attention and study.

But for now, suffice it to say that potential lenders are all around you. Your family, friends, colleagues, and acquaintances are all waiting to hear about this great investment opportunity—even if they don't know it yet. When you realize that institutional lenders can no longer serve your needs for speed and flexibility, start putting the word out that you're looking for private funds, and you'll be surprised at the response you get.

A mentor or coach. Most real estate entrepreneurs find that their paths to success are much straighter and less littered with obstacles when they have an experienced mentor or coach to assist them in their journey.

In fact, most wealthy local investors can trace their success back through a series of mentors and coaches who served various roles at various times in their careers. A good advisor's ability to motivate you, cut through the fear and uncertainty about investing in real estate, and even analyze and make recommendations about specific deals makes your mentor or coach potentially the most important person on your success team.

A mentor is someone to whom you can turn to for guidance and motivation. Your mentor should be someone who is already where you want to be. He should be willing to share information freely. He should have ethical standards in conducting his business that match your own.

At the same time, one of the most important aspects of the mentor/student relationship is

reasonable expectations and demands on the part of the mentee. Yes, there are experienced investors out there who will simply take a shine to you, and out of the goodness of their own hearts and a desire to "give back" to the industry will go to extraordinary lengths to help you succeed, with no thought of compensation whatsoever.

But there are a lot more experienced folks who don't have the time to have lunch with you every week, hold your hand when you're scared, let you "work for free, for the experience", or otherwise turn you into a successful competitor.

But you'll find that, especially within the confines of association meetings, many of your more experienced colleagues are very willing to answer questions about neighborhoods, deals, strategies, service providers, gurus, and more. Don't be afraid to ask these questions; many advanced investors get a bit of a thrill by passing on hard-earned knowledge and experience to someone who soaks it up like a sponge, then uses it to better their own lives.

On the other hand, be warned that not everyone who might want to "help" you has your best interests at heart. Sadly, there's a breed of bad guys out there that prey on newbies by offering "assistance" that's really meant to separate you from your money.

Beware of the "mentor" who actively courts you, promising to show you exactly how they buy, renovate, and manage properties. Yes, they'll put you in their car and take you out to see all the great deals they've done. And then they'll show you a property that they happen to want to sell, and describe in glowing terms what a great deal it is, and then realize that hey, IT'S THE PERFECT FIRST DEAL FOR YOU!!! Since the property fits everything you know about what makes a great deal—knowledge that has been imparted to you by this very seller—you go for it. It's only later that you realize that the property is worth less than you thought and needs more work. But by then, your "mentor" has moved on to the next new fish.

One of the most obvious warning signs of this species of shark is that they will make every effort to separate you from the objective advice and multiple opinions you can get from your association.

They'll invite you to special, non-club-related, "VIP only" meetings. They'll tell you that the group is full

of losers and wannabes, and that you're wasting your time by attending meetings. They'll do anything they can to separate you from the herd, because chances are, the herd knows exactly who they are and what they're about, and will tell you not to work with them.

Find and take advantage of the knowledge of as many experienced, ethical, active coaches and mentors as you can find. But be careful that you're taking the right advice from the right people, and that you're always in a position to get multiple opinions on what you're doing.

How to Make Your Team Relationships Work

As you put together your team, remember that your relationship with each team member should be win-win. For many of your team members, the "win" in working with you is that you bring repeat business to them.

But it's just as important that you remain loyal to them, treat them with respect, and, of course, pay them on time and in full.

Part of the "win" for you is having professionals in different areas that can relieve you of some of the day-to-day drudgery of owning and managing properties, but don't hesitate to add to your side of the equation by asking your service providers for discounts based on the amount of business you do with them. Most are happy to provide these discounts in return for the ease of doing business with the same person over and over: for instance, I pay \$250 for closings at a company that normally charges \$400—but I'm also one of the company's best customers.

There may be others that you add as your real estate business progresses—for instance, a personal assistant to take care of the miscellaneous things you need done to keep your personal and business life in order, a web designer or database designer when you begin to use the web to market to buyers, sellers, and renters, and so on.

A last tip on developing your success team: when you find someone who makes you a lot of money or saves you a lot of hassle, be sure to go the extra mile in making sure they know they're appreciated. The occasional thank you note is always appropriate, but for bigger wins (the real estate agent who

negotiates the deal that you wholesale for a \$10,000 profit, or the attorney who comes in on Christmas eve to file the LLC you need before New Year's Day, or the title company that saves the closing that ultimately makes you \$25,000), make sure you express your thanks in gifts and cash.

Lesson 4: Understanding Creative Finance Lets You Buy All the Properties You Could Ever Want

How many properties would you like to buy this year? 1? 5? 25? 125?

If your brain exploded once that number reached double digits, because you just can't imagine ever having the cash or credit to buy that many properties, let me introduce you to your new best friend: creative financing.

Creative finance, also known as "no money down real estate", has gotten an unfairly bad rap due to its ubiquitous presence as a late-night TV sales infomercial pitch²². Many people assume that because "no money down" is the siren song of so many slightly greasy-looking television pitchmen, it must be just another get rich quick scheme.

But the truth is, low money and no money down deals are done every day by real estate investors who've bothered to learn the techniques, and are actually relatively easy to accomplish in our market once you know how they work and—more importantly—how they can benefit you and your sellers.

Just as important as the "no money down" aspect of these deals is the "no qualifying" aspect. If your credit is a problem, or you're self-employed, or you don't have 20% down, or you don't have a ton of cash reserves, you're not a very attractive borrower to a bank. In creative finance deals, these 'qualifications' are really, truly unimportant.

What "Creative Finance" Really Means

²² And the fact that it sounds vaguely illegal, like "creative bookkeeping".

Creative finance is a sweeping term that covers any kind of financing negotiated between two individuals. There are no institutions involved in creative finance deals—it's you and someone else making a deal to finance a piece of property.

And it's not some new-fangled concept invented by real estate gurus, either. Creative finance is a very, very old and time-honored way to buy real estate. I mean, seriously, how do you think people bought land before banks and mortgages existed? They either paid cash, or they made payments to the owner, or they borrowed the money from someone else and made payments to them. In fact, prior to the establishment of the Federal Housing Administration in the 1930s, there was no such thing as a "bank mortgage" the way we think about it today (relatively low money down, with a 30 year amortization, no balloon), and many American homeowners, landlords, and farmers bought their properties using what we'd now call creative financing.²³

Creative finance deals can be done on any type of real estate. Everything from single family homes to commercial properties to land are bought and sold creatively in our market every week.

Because creative financing is such a catch-all term, it might help you to understand the kinds of forms these transactions take. Creative financing deals that you'll do will fall generally into one of these categories: YouBuyHouses.com offers financing on many of our properties. If you'd like to know more about our financing programs, give us a call at 513-471-0141 or see our financeable properties at www.YouBuyHouses.com

Owner-Held Mortgages, AKA "Seller Carry Backs". Let's say you meet a seller--perhaps an older homeowner or a retiring landlord--who doesn't owe anything on his property. Could he agree to give you the property and let you pay the purchase price in monthly payments over time? Of course he could. It's perfectly legal, and can be a real win-win for both you and the seller.

When a seller does this, the way in which he's protected from your potential non-payment is the same way in which a bank would be protected--he has a formal, written note from you describing how much you owe, what the rate of interest (if any) is on your debt, what the payments will be, when they're due,

_

²³ But they probably just called it financing.

what the late fee is when they're late, and for how many years the payments will be made. He also has a mortgage recorded at the county, which basically says that if you don't pay the note according to the terms, he can initiate a legal action--foreclosure--to recover the property.

Even a seller who doesn't own his property outright can carry financing by doing a wrap-around mortgage, agreeing to a "take over payments" deal (below) or engaging in one of the other techniques below. However, when a property is free and clear, you should be ready with an offer involving a sellerheld loan.

Taking Over Existing Financing, AKA "Buying Subject To the Existing Loan". Statistically, only about 20-25% of properties in the U.S. are owned free and clear. That means that the other 75-80% are subject to one or more mortgage liens.

In these cases, it might be to your advantage, and the sellers, to have you "take over" his debt. While this is similar to the formal loan assumptions that we could do on FHA and VA loans prior to 1989, it's different in one key respect: the bank that holds the financing is not typically notified that the property has been sold and that you, not the seller, are now responsible to make the monthly payments.

The reason for this is the "Due on Sale" clause that's present in all conventional, institutional notes today. This clause says that if the seller sells his property, he has to pay off the loan, and if he doesn't, the bank can call the entire balance due and payable immediately, *even if the payments are current*.

Despite this clause, which presents a clear (if not likely to materialize) risk that you, as the buyer, could find yourself in the position of needing to pay off the entire loan at some point in the future, many real estate investors buy many properties this way. Why? Because taking over someone else's loan is cheaper--there's no requirement for a down payment, no new appraisal, no points, closing costs, or financing fees. Because the seller's rate of interest might be much lower than what you, as an investor, could get even if you DID qualify for a new loan. And because you can almost always pay MORE for a property if you have no financing costs, no down payment, and a low monthly payment than if you have to pay cash or get a new loan.

There's a lot to know about buying houses subject to the existing loan--how to write up the contract, disclose all the risks in writing to the seller, protect YOURSELF against future actions of the seller (like if he declares bankruptcy and he includes the loan--which, remember, is still in HIS name--in the filing), and more. But it's worth learning about, given that we're coming out of a period where lots of loans were originated at sub-4% interest rates. Taking them over requires some care and knowledge, but might well be worth it if it allows you to buy houses with incredibly low, fixed- rate monthly payments.

Land Installment Contracts (AKA Contracts for Deed, Agreements for Deed, Bonds for Deed, etc.) When a seller is willing to accept payments, but doesn't want to give you the deed to the property, a land contract is often the best solution.

In a land contract, the owner agrees to transfer the deed to you only when the final payment of principle is made. In the meantime, you—although you're not the legal title holder—have all the rights of an owner. The buyer gets to depreciate the property for tax purposes, and can rent, renovate, sell, or otherwise dispose of the property. As the buyer, your interest in the property is reflected in a recorded document at the courthouse.

Lease-Options. Just as you can sell a property you own via a lease with option to buy, you can buy someone else's property on lease/option.

As the "buyer", you are actually in a tenant/landlord relationship with the owner—only you have the right to sublease the property to your own tenant or tenant/buyer. Since your purchased price is fixed during the term of the option with the seller, you get the advantage of appreciation—that is, if the property increases in value while you have control over it, you can sell it for more than you owe.

You have a second source of income in the form of cash flow, since you always negotiate a lower rent payment with the seller than you can get from a tenant. On the other hand, if the property decreases in value or turns out to be more trouble than it's worth, you can simply choose not to exercise your option to buy—and the only "loss" you will incur will be the amount of the option fee you paid up front.

Private Lenders and Partnerships. Let's face it, not every seller can or will finance his property for

you.

That's when you turn to other individuals who have money they'd like to invest for a fixed return (private lenders) or who would like to take the higher risk (and reap the higher profits) of partial ownership of a property as a partner.

There are literally hundreds of thousands of these folks in the country today. Some of them are "stock market refugees" who have absolutely no interest in finding, negotiating, fixing or managing real estate, but have cash that they've divested sitting around in low-yielding accounts that they'd like to invest at higher rates of interest.

Some of them are seasoned real estate investors who'd like to provide all the money and have you do all the work.

Some of them are people who don't have enough money to buy an entire property, but who have great credit at the 20% down needed to get a bank loan, and who are willing to "lend" you their credit so that you can partner on a deal and get a relatively low, fixed, 30 year rate.

And as with other forms of creative finance, you can negotiate the terms to your heart's content—what you pay, and when, and at what rate of interest or what percentage of the deal—is completely a matter of agreement between you and the guy with the money.

So, Who's Going to Do These Deals With Me?²⁴

It's super-easy for most investors to understand why THEY want to buy properties without paying cash or going to the bank. What's tougher is understanding why a seller would take payments on their house rather than hold out for a cash offer, or let you take over their payments, or why a private lender or partner would trust you with their cash.

The answer is that these deals meet some need that the individual seller or money person has. We've

_

²⁴ Other than YouBuyHouses.com, of course!

already talked about why 3rd party lenders and partners want to do business with you—for the return. But the most common reasons that sellers finance deals for you has less to do with making money on the return than they do with the seller's situation. The main reasons SELLERS finance properties include:

- You can pay a higher price for their property if they can take that price over time. If a seller had a property worth \$100,000, would you pay \$200,000 for it? No? What if the terms were \$1 a year for 200,000 years? Silly example, but it shows that there's real value in good terms.
- You can close in days if the seller will carry financing. Imagine a seller who's under intense time pressure to get his property sold NOW. Maybe the city is on his back about code violations, and he's got a court date in a week where he's going to get fined \$1,500 for not fixing the gutters. Maybe he got a job transfer all the way across the country, needs to move next week, and hasn't sold his house. Maybe he bought a new house and couldn't sell the old one, and can't figure out how he's going to afford both payments next month. A seller in these positions doesn't have the luxury of waiting for a buyer to apply for and get traditional financing, which can take up to 2 months. Your offer of taking the property off his hands in return for monthly payments sounds a whole lot better to a seller like this than waiting around for a cash offer.
- The seller wants debt relief. For the seller who owes close to what his home is worth, it can actually COST him money to sell traditionally. By the time he's paid an agent, plus closing costs, plus some expenses on the BUYER'S new loan, he may have to walk into the closing with \$5,000 or more cash just to sell his house. If he lets you take over his payments, it might cost him nothing, or just a few hundred dollars.
- The seller is in a tax situation that makes selling creatively more profitable than selling conventionally. A seller with a completely depreciated apartment building can expect to pay 20% or more of the sales price of that building in taxes. If he leases it to you with an option to buy, he gets rid of the management of the building and gets monthly payments, but doesn't have to pay the taxes until you exercise your option.
- Most basically, the seller needs to get rid of the property more than he needs to get cash for

it. It's absolutely true that most sellers want cash (and, for that matter, full price) for their properties. That's because most sellers aren't motivated. They have nice properties in decent areas and aren't under a huge amount of pressure to sell.

In our business—and if you didn't read the chapter on not paying retail, this would be a good time to do that—we're never looking so much for a particular property as we are for a seller with a problem. Sellers with real problems are open to real solutions, even if they involve creative ones, like "Let me take over your loan", or "Take payments instead of all cash".

How Many Properties Could You Buy This Year If You Understood Creative Finance?

The answer is, as many as you could reasonably handle.

When you understand various creative finance techniques, there is really and truly no reason to invest your own money in any good deal. Between seller financing, private financing, and partners, there are plenty of people out there who want to cooperate with you in getting them the returns they want and/or getting rid of a property they don't want.

For this reason, you'll find that creative finance, in its various forms, is a common topic of discussion and education at our association. In fact, when you attend, you might just find your next partner, lender, or even seller willing to carry back financing!

Lesson 5: Pay Attention or Pay Big: Asset Protection for Beginners

At the next Association meeting, ask the active investors you meet what kind of entity they operate under.

Then, let it tell you something that every single one of them either has an answer ("I have an LLC", "I use Limited Partnerships", and so on), or is very aware that they SHOULD have an answer ("I know I need to get an LLC", for instance).

There are two good reasons that successful investors own properties and flip deals through entities: the first (and actually most important) is that properly-formed and managed entities can literally make you thousands of dollars a year by reducing the amount of income tax you pay on the money you make.

The second is that properly-formed and managed entities can protect your hard-won real estate empire from a very real threat in this country today: the threat of losing everything you own to a nuisance lawsuit, a jackpot jury verdict, or some other legal "lightning strike" that you can't predict or control.

Now, you may be thinking, "Only bad guys get sued, and even if the occasional good guy like me accidentally winds up in court, I'll win, 'cause I'm good. And even if I don't, I'll have insurance to cover me. Asset protection is for bad guys and paranoid people".

If only.

The reality is, you'll need to create and run your business through an entity—probably a Limited Liability Company, but possibly something else, depending on your own situation—as soon as it's practically possible. Why? Let me count the ways:

• When you own investment real estate, many people assume that you must be rich. And sadly, that attracts financial predators. You may not FEEL rich, because that \$100,000 rental house has an \$80,000 mortgage on it and is only clearing \$100 a month. But the fact is, many Americans don't even own one house, and here you are, owning 2, or 3, or 10. Thus, in the eyes of certain folks, you MUST have some deep pockets.

And sadly, there's a small but growing part of the population that finds filing lawsuits against "rich" people to be an easy and profitable way making a living. You've seen them on T.V.—they're the same people who stage slip-and-falls in grocery stores hoping to collect a \$20,000 settlement.

Does it seem impossible that lil' ol' you will ever become the victim of such a financial predator? Then go ahead—own a bunch of properties in your own name, and see what happens. Or, just skip that stage, and learn from the generation of real estate entrepreneurs before you. Basically, any owner of investment real estate who's owned enough of it for long enough has been the victim of one of these nuisance lawsuits or financial predators. And one reason that real estate is particularly subject to this kind of action is that...

• Unlike "soft" assets like bank accounts, cash, stocks, antiques, etc., real estate ownership is public record. It's literally possible to discover every single piece of property that an individual owns simply by going online and entering their name into a government website. This is both a handy tool for bad guys who are looking for someone with proverbial "deep pockets" AND a way for someone who's already taken it into their head to sue you for slights or damages, real or imagined, to determine what else you might have that they could get.

Now, the reality is that the first thing a potential plaintiff will do is contact an attorney. The first thing the ATTORNEY will do is to determine whether he thinks the case is winnable and, if so, if you're likely to be able to pay up. If the mental, physical, or financial injury to his client is something that insurance would typically cover—like a broken bone from a fall on your property—the attorney will almost certainly take the case on contingency (meaning

that the plaintiff doesn't have to pay unless he wins the case). If the injury is NOT something that insurance would cover (see that list below) and it at least appears that you have relatively few assets with which to satisfy any judgment or settlement, he's likely to ask the plaintiff for a retainer—which stops most nuisance suits dead in their tracks

Certain types of asset protection offer you "privacy" in the sense that no immediate connection can be made between you and all the properties you own, or even between those properties themselves. This can make you a much less attractive target for nuisance cases—especially those that are far-fetched or those that are of a nature that insurance would typically not cover. Speaking of which...

- There is a long and growing list of risks against which no property insurance will insure. If you're still thinking, "Let 'em sue! I have great insurance!", think again. Many of the things you can get covered by your homeowner's policy are literally impossible to get covered in your "non-owner occupied" policy. If you lose a claim for one of these things, the judgment has to be paid by you, as does your legal defense to begin with. For example, the insurance policy on your rental property will almost certainly not cover:
 - Damages from most types of "environmental toxins", including mold, lead paint, radon, and asbestos
 - o Claims of fair housing violations
 - Dog bites or injuries from certain breeds of dog your tenant might have, including Pitt
 Bulls, Chows, German Shepherds, Rottweilers, and mixes of any of the above
 - Damage to your tenants' possessions because of fire, flood, or other, otherwise insurable risks

And, don't forget—insurance policies have liability limits. If you have a million dollar liability limit and a jury hands down a \$3 million judgment against you, guess who gets to pay?

• The US graduates more new lawyers each year than the rest of the world combined. And all these well-scrubbed, enthusiastic new lawyers need to find a way to make a living. So they actively market to potential plaintiffs asking them to think really, really hard about whom in their lives might have treated them wrong and therefore need to be sued. You've seen proof of it if you've ever watched daytime TV, which seems to be supported primarily by attorneys drumming up business by soliciting calls from everyone who's every used this drug or gotten that implant.

And guess what—it's ever cheaper and easier for these folks to reach your tenants, via the U.S. Postal service!

One enterprising firm in Pennsylvania has, in recent years, engaged in a multi-state mailing campaign to tenants in older neighborhoods explaining that if their children are doing poorly in school, are acting up, or ever get sick to their stomachs or seem listless that the problem is probably lead paint in their rental homes. They then offer a free medical consultation and a toll free number to call in case the tenant would like to get one of the multi-million dollar settlements this firm has gotten from landlords all over the country. This is, of course, at no cost to the tenant unless the firm achieves a settlement. If you'd like to get a taste of the amount of sheer volume of these sorts of pitches, go to any internet search engine and type in "landlord+sue" or "property+owner+lawsuit".

• Yes, you're a really good person. Except that as the "rich", successful landlord or investor, you are always the bad guy. Whether in front of a jury, a housing court, or a regulating agency such as the local building department or neighborhood association, the assumption is always made that, as a landlord, you have a vested interest in making money at any cost. Don't believe me? Ask any ten of your non-investor friends what they think of landlords in general. Then imagine them as ten of your peers, sitting in a jury box, and think of what you'll have to overcome if you're ever sued.

So How Can Asset Protection Help?

The point of all of this is simply to show you that owning investment properties carries risks that can cost you a lot more than the money you have invested in the properties themselves. In fact, unless you have appropriate asset protection in place, a single million-plus dollar judgment can wipe out not only your entire real estate portfolio, but also your own home, banks and investment accounts, as well.

Luckily, there are ways to legally separate your assets from one another, so that even if something unexpected happens, only part of what you've built will be at risk.

When properly set up and maintained, each entity is effectively a separate "artificial person" that owns its own set of properties. If something goes wrong with one of the properties that this "person" owns, only the other properties and assets owned by that entity are at risk.

For instance, let's imagine that you own 30 properties in your own name, representing \$3 million in assets. In one property, a tenant's guest falls down the stairs and breaks his back. After a long, stressful trial, the guest is awarded a \$4 million judgment—\$3 million more than the cap on your liability policy. The opposing attorney certified the judgment, and then proceeds to foreclose on and auction off your entire empire. End of story.

On the other hand, if your 30 properties are divided among 3 Limited Liability Companies (LLCs), each of which has \$1 million in net assets, the tale ends a bit differently. Although the plaintiff's attorney will try to name you personally in the case, he will probably fail; therefore, only the actual owner—your LLC—will be a defendant. Again, the jury awards a \$4 million verdict. But this time, there is only \$1 million in assets to satisfy the judgment, leaving you with \$2 million to start over with. And if the 30 properties are divided among 10 LLCs with just \$300,000 in assets each...you get the picture.

Incidentally, placing your properties in LLCs, Limited Partnerships, Corporations, and Trusts that you, in turn, own may serve a second purpose—it hides your overall financial picture and makes you a less attractive target for true "nuisance" lawsuits.

An attorney debating whether or not to take a weak case—especially one that would probably not be settled by your insurance company--will always look into the public record to see how much equity is

available to satisfy a potential judgment. If he sees that you are the owner of 30 properties, he's likely to go forward; if he sees that the owner is a trust with only one other property, he's likely to give it a pass.

And if the risk of losing everything you ever worked for isn't enough to convince you that you need an entity, here's a final thought: a properly selected and managed entity can save you thousands of dollars a year in taxes. It's a topic that's worth studying.

Lesson 6: For the Educated Entrepreneur, There's No Such Thing as a "Bad" Real Estate Market

If you had a time machine, and you could only use it to choose a year in which to start investing in real estate, which year would you choose?

Would it be 2001, before the huge run-up in prices took hold, so you could buy some properties cheaply and sell them before the crash? Because if so, you'd be buying houses in the middle of a recession, and you'd need to have a plan that would allow you to hold onto them until the economy recovered.

Would it be 2006, when you could wholesale houses in a matter of days for 5-figure profits, and have buyers fighting over them? If that's the plan, better bring a lot of marketing money along, because the super-hot market also meant that there was a lot of competition for good deals.

Would it be 2009, when properties were literally selling for the fabled 'pennies on the dollar'? Because if you chose that date, you'd better be prepared to pay cash or have a bunch of private financing—there'd be no institutional financing available for you to pay for all those bargains. Oh, and I wouldn't plan to sell them right away, because that financing wasn't available for ANYONE. Ask me how I know.

When the media talks about "good" markets and "bad" markets, it tends to focus on just one perspective, and that's the perspective of the seller of a piece of residential real estate. A "good" market, if you believe the nightly news, is one in which house prices are increasing and sales are brisk.

Which is a metric you'd probably agree with if you're trying to sell your home or your rehab in that

market, or you're a real estate agent or a mortgage broker, or a builder who makes more money when more people are buying.

On the other hand, if you're a first-time homebuyer on a limited budget who keeps getting outbid on house after house that you want to buy, you might not think such a market was so "good". Or if you're a landlord with a bread-and-butter house that just won't rent because all the qualified renters are buying homes instead, you might just curse that "good" market. Or if you're an investor in self-storage units, which actually tend to do BETTER when people are renting rather than buying, you'll probably just brace yourself for the "good" market and prepare to ride it out until the "bad" market—which is better for you—comes back.

As a real estate entrepreneur, you are always, at some level, in the business of providing housing. And the awesome thing about housing is, it's literally always in demand. It doesn't matter what's going on in the economy—human beings still need a place to live. Sure, if the worst happens, they may live 10 to a house, or they may move to more affordable properties in not-so-nice areas, but they WILL put a roof over their heads, no matter what.

Thus, there is always a market for what you have to sell. The NATURE of the demand shifts—from rental housing to purchases and back again, from easy institutional financing to more owner financing and back again, and so on—but the market is always there.

The point is, "good" and "bad" markets mean something completely different to you as a real estate entrepreneur than they do to home owners, or agents, or the general public. The ONLY thing you need to know to make money when the rest of the world has pulled the metaphorical blankets over its metaphorical head so that it can mean and groan over how "bad" things are can be stated in two sentences:

- 1. Buy when others are selling, and sell when others are buying
- 2. Shift your exit strategy to meet the demand of the moment, and be ready to shift it again when that demand, inevitably, changes

The Houston market is a case-in-point. During the crash of the oil industry in the 80s, housing in Houston took a major hit. Entire subdivision sat empty; foreclosed properties where everywhere; sellers often found that their mortgage balances were significantly more than what the few remaining buyers were willing to pay. Home prices in some neighborhoods dropped by 50% or more seemingly overnight.

Needless to say, not too many real estate entrepreneurs were excited about doing business in Houston during this period. The wholesale real estate market depends on retailer and landlord buyers; the retailers largely closed up shop because THEY had no buyers, and many of the landlords went into "survival mode", trying to figure out how to deal with their existing rentals, which they suddenly found themselves "upside down" on.

But the real pros, who'd educated themselves about borrowing private money, and multiple exit strategies, and who had the intestinal fortitude to simply believe that this was just another (fairly extreme) market cycle, did exactly the opposite: they bought and bought.

In fact, one Houston-area entrepreneur I know found an entire subdivision of nearly 100 properties that was 2/3rds finished, but which had never been occupied. He got some money backers, bought the entire subdivision from the bankruptcy court at under \$10,000 per 3-bedroom house, and rented them all at an under-market rent of \$400 per month. Using the positive cash flow, he finished the 30 or so properties that had been abandoned in some stage of construction, and then just—waited.

As the market slowly recovered through the early and mid-90s, he began to sell off the now 5 year old houses. The first ones sold in the \$55,000 range. As the market heated up, he was able to sell in the \$60s, then the \$70s. By the end of the project 10 years later, he was able to sell of the remaining buildable lots for \$15,000 each—more than he'd paid for the houses themselves a decade earlier.

This project made this investor—and his money partners—multi-millionaires over the course of a decade.

Was it a risky endeavor to buy so many houses in a down market? In retrospect, it's easy for us to say, "Nah, he was able to make money holding them, so even if the market never recovered, he'd just collect

the cash flow forever and ever and he'd be fine." But although he now tells the story as if he knew that making millions was a foregone conclusion, I'm sure that at the time, it was a scary thing to do.

It's human nature to follow the herd, and to be affected by other people's attitudes about the real estate market or any other market.

But after more than a quarter century of buying, selling, renting, and financing real estate in "good" markets and "bad" markets, I'm here to tell you that there is lots and lots of money to be made in EVERY market. The key is to stay aware of what's happening in OUR market. Are more people selling than buying? Then round up some money and buy at rock bottom prices. Are more people buying than selling? Offload some of that cheap inventory you got at the bottom of the market, at the new higher prices. Is there a lot of rental demand? Rent, or sell houses to people who do, and who don't have enough properties to fulfill the demand.

Ask any association member who made their fortune AFTER the market 'crashed' in 2007-2008, or because of the recession in 2001, or during the early 80s, when interest rates were 15% and the only real way to buy a house was with owner financing. They'll all tell you that every market is a 'good' market, if YOU know how to best position yourself to take advantage of it.

Lesson 7: You WILL Get Educated. Oh Yes, You Will.

Here's How to Do it Without Going Broke.

If you want to make safe, profitable real estate deals, there's more you need to know than can be crammed into 70 pages.

And if you've been exploring the real estate education world, you already know that there are endless gurus and infomarketers who are more than willing to accept thousands, or tens of thousands, of dollars of your hard-earned money in return for filling you in on the details of their favorite strategies.

But before you spend as much on a real estate "education" as it costs to buy a cheap house in our area, let me fill you in on the realities of the education biz, and how to navigate it to get the knowledge you need without re-mortgaging your house to get it.

First of all, let me reiterate that your real estate education is a necessary and high-leverage investment. The bottom line is, you WILL learn the lessons that every successful real estate entrepreneur knows. The question is, will you do it the easy, cheap way, or the hard, expensive way?

The difficult and costly way is to let the market teach you what you need to know. Go ahead, overpay for a house, underestimate the repair costs, put it up for sale and lose \$10,000 when you sell it—I promise you you'll learn valuable lessons and you won't repeat the same mistakes twice. On the other hand, for $1/5^{th}$ the cost, you could just take a good, complete 4-day course on how to evaluate and rehab properties from someone who's already gone through that process over and over and over, and MAKE money on your next rehab.

The worst way to learn how to be an effective landlord is to let your tenants teach you. The worst way

to find out how to wholesale houses is to just run out and do it, and ruin your reputation among serious buyers by offering a bunch of bad deals while you're learning what a good deal looks like.

EVERYONE, and I do mean everyone, who becomes successful in real estate does so by using the hard-won experience of others—be they educators, colleagues, or mentors—who've worked out the kinks in the system and learned how to minimize the risks, avoid the mistakes, and do the thing you're trying to do in the fastest, easiest manner possible.

People who try to avoid spending money to make money end up spending MORE money cleaning up their own messes than they would have by just getting the right information to start with.

At the same time, not all real estate education is created equal. In fact, not to put too fine a point on it, some of the available "education" out there just plain sucks.

A shocking number of the "programs", courses, bootcamps, seminars, and so on aren't worth the paper they're printed on—and yes, I'm including some of those that are completely delivered online.

I own more than \$200,000 worth of real estate education myself, and I personally evaluate 40-50 new books, home study courses, and live events each and every year. And I'm here to tell you that a slick sales pitch, a convincing webinar, an awesome offer, or dozens of testimonials from "successful students" absolutely do NOT reflect the quality or quantity of education you get when you invest in a particular piece of education. Much of what I see—and remember, when I say "see", I mean fully read/watch/listen to—is absolutely not worth the money that's being charged for it. Most commonly, the reasons are:

• The self-proclaimed "guru" simply doesn't have the knowledge or experience to really teach what he's trying to teach. You might be surprised to find out that some course promoters claim experience they don't have (one common trick is to say "My partners and I have done over 1 zillion deals" when in fact, he's done 10 and is taking credit for every deal every one of his students have done, even when the students did the deals DESPITE, rather than because of, the teacher's advice). Real estate education is a big-money business; too many of the practitioners

make their money selling courses rather than doing the thing they're claiming to teach.

- The information is incomplete or incomprehensible. There are real estate instructors out there who are very good at their strategies, but who reach their level of incompetence when they sit down to organize a step-by-step system for showing other people how to do it. Many courses lack the detail you'd need to actually implement the strategy in question; others are so poorly written or organized that you simply can't follow them.
- The information is outdated. Some strategies, like rental management, change very little over time. Others, like buying short sales, shift significantly enough from one year to the next that a course produced last year isn't entirely relevant this year. Creating a product is a long and arduous process, and most educators dread the necessary updates so much that they just don't do them.
- The information isn't intended to "teach" you anything at all—just to convince you that you need to spend a lot more money on the next, much more expensive step in your education. This is the business model behind the "free" books and reports²⁵, the \$300 entry-level weekend seminars, and other very low-cost education that claims to teach you "everything you need to know about _________". What you learn is just enough to know that you need the very-expensive up sell program to know enough to actually do anything.

Don't get me wrong, the cheap overview education definitely has its place when done correctly. If what you're getting is a real overview, not a 3 day long sales pitch or 50 pages of pictures of the kinds of checks you could be taking home if you just spent the money to take the next course, it can be very valuable in helping you understand whether a particular strategy is even something you should think about pursuing. What bothers me is when the "free" or "cheap" education isn't education at all, but pure sales pitch.

_

²⁵ That's right, you caught me. But what I'm trying to sell you is a \$197, year-long association membership that will change your life, not a \$25,000 mentoring program that will just change your credit score.

²⁶ In fact, one of my favorite types of events to attend is "dog and pony shows", where a dozen or more speakers each get 90-120 minutes to explain and pitch their strategies. It's a great way to get exposed to a lot of new ideas in a short period of time. OREIA happens to hold the best and largest in the country each November; you can get more info at OREIAConvention.com

The cost of a particular course is not a measure of how complete, realistic, or usable it is. The real estate informarketing business discovered a long time ago that people buy courses and seminars based on emotions—excitement, greed, fear of loss, and so on—rather than on logical evaluation of the actual value of the information. Thus, the rule is not that the better the education is, the more it costs; it's that the better the pitch, the more the education costs.

You've probably seen excellent real estate education that costs a few hundred dollars and excellent education that costs \$10,000. But you've also seen terrible education at both price points. The trick is that no matter how cynical or sales pitch-immune you think you are, you probably can't tell the difference until you've already spent the money. And no, I'm not insulting your intelligence—I'm just telling you that good pitchmen are really, really good.

Which is why your FIRST step should be to join REIA of Greater Cincinnati... REIAGC's members and leaders attend workshops, web classes, and other events by the hundreds each year. They know which speakers are "for real" and which are full of it. They know which courses are worth buying and which bootcamps are worth a trip out of town. If you see someone selling on REIA's stage, it's because they truly believe that they are not only experienced, knowledgeable, and able to teach, but that they're one of the best in the business.

..And your second step is the check out my courses and seminars at www.REGoddess.com

You'll find everything from free articles to inexpensive coaching to full-blown mentoring to homestudy courses on a variety of topics. These educational products represent the most usable, complete, and easy-to-absorb training in the real estate business. Thousands of people all over the U.S. have used my courses to make it easy to finance deals, negotiate with sellers, build their businesses, lease/option homes, and generally make money in the real estate business. You can be next—check out the catalog of offerings at www.REGoddess.com

And when you're ready to "pull the trigger" and buy a property, you know where to go...

www.YouBuyHouses.com is your source for great deals on rentals, rehabs, and

everything in between. Go there now and register for our buyer's list, so that you can get the first look at your next great deal.

Let's make some money together in the very near future.

This Pass Entitles the Bearer and Up to Two Guests To One Regular Meeting of The Real Estate Investors Association of Greater Cincinnati At No Charge

Regular meetings are held the 1st and 3rd Thursday of each month 6-9 PM at the Community Action Agency at 1740 Langdon Farm Road in Bond Hill

Meeting topics available at www.CincinnatiREIA.com

One per customer, please. Regular guest fee is \$30 per meeting.

Referrer: YouBuyHouses.com Vena Jones-Cox

Interested in Passive Real Estate Investments? Don't Even THINK About Writing a Check Until You've Taken Advantage of this FREE Passive Investment Education!

After 25 years in the real estate investing business, I've seen far too many private lenders, partners, and other passive investors get into money-losing deals, for the simple reason that they don't know how to evaluate the opportunities, the paperwork, or the documents, due diligence, and insurance that SHOULD be in place for their protection.

That's why I created a 5-part, free online training for people considering passive real estate investments. You'll learn:

- How to evaluate private lending and partnership deals, performing mortgages, turnkey rentals, and private equity funds
- What you need in place to protect yourself
- How to make passive investments tax-free in your IRA
- What to look for, and what to look OUT for, in your partners
- And much more.

Get this free training at www.REGoddess.com